
“The Mission of the City of Lakeside is to serve the citizens of our community with responsibility, transparency, 
integrity, and dedication”. 

In accordance with HB2560, the City of Lakeside, to extent reasonably possible, will make all meetings accessible remotely via 
Zoom and provide the opportunity for citizens to submit oral testimony during the meeting and written testimony by emailing 

cityhall@cityoflakeside.org by 4:00 p.m. on the day of each regularly scheduled council meeting. 

Zoom call in information: 
Meeting ID: 444-313-9923 

Numeric Password: 611328 
Regular phone users should dial into zoom at 408-638-0968 And then put 

in ID and Password when prompted by voice 

1 Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4. Citizens Comments – Visitor Comments are the opportunity for the community to present information or speak on an issue
not on the agenda or on agenda items that do not include public hearings. Comments are limited to three minutes for each person.
The Mayor may reduce the time limit per speaker depending on the number of speakers. Videos are not turned on for this portion of
the meeting and visitor microphones are muted throughout the meeting, with the exception of the allotted three minutes. Visitors may
state their comments and should not expect the Council to engage in back-and-forth dialogue regarding the comments. Public
hearing testimony will be taken during the public hearing and not under Visitor Comments. During public hearing agenda items, the
Mayor will announce a separate procedure for the Council to hear public testimony relating to the subject matter of the hearing”

5. Consent Agenda: Routine items of business that require a vote but are not expected to require a discussion by the
Council are placed on the Consent Calendar and voted upon as one item. In the event a Councilor requests an 
item be discussed, it will be removed from the Consent Calendar and placed under General Business. 

a. Minutes of November 9, 21, 27 and December 4, 2023
b. November Expense & Payroll reports
c. Monthly update reports from Library & Planning – (No updates)

6. FY22-23 Audit Report:  HMW CPA’s & Associates, LLC- Laura Fisher

7. Wastewater Plant project Update:  Dyer Partnership – Aaron Speakman

8. Planning Commission Appointments; Rob Ward and Dave Smith

9. Approval of Contract for new City Manager/Recorder Rick Hohnbaum
a. Introduction of new City Manager/Recorder Rick Hohnbaum

10. Resolution 2023-11; Delegation of Authority in the event of a lack of quorum

11. Lakeside District, Board and Committee Reports:
A. Airport: Mayor/City Manager; No Meeting
B. Watershed: Councilor Miller
C. Water District; Councilor Hurn
D. Tenmile Lake Association; Councilor Ritter
E. Fire District: Councilor Pointer
F. Lakeside Business Owners; Councilor Smith

12. City Manager Report:
13. Mayor & Council Comments
14. Adjourn- Next meeting; Pending
The above meeting is open to the public. The Lakeside City Hall is handicapped-accessible. Lakeside is an Affirmative
Action/Equal Opportunity Employer and complies with Section 804 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. All City Council
Meetings are recorded and kept on audio media.

PUBLIC NOTICE 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY DECEMBER 14, 2023 @ 6:00 pm.  
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 915 NORTH LAKE ROAD, 

LAKESIDE, OR. 

mailto:cityhall@cityoflakeside.org


City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       November 9, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 1 of 3 11/09/2023 
 

The Lakeside City Council held a meeting at Lakeside City Hall, 915 North Lake Road, Oregon at 6:00 p.m. 
on Thursday, November 9, 2023. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  6:00 p.m.  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT:  Mayor Sherry Kinsey, Councilors: Alan Pointer, Jaci Smith, Kim Ritter, Karen Hurn, Tom 
Miller, Nikki Wood 
ABSENT:  None 

STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Melissa Bethel 
 
4. Citizens Comments:    

Jane Mathews:  Ms. Mathews spoke regarding a fund-raising raffle for a quilt. 
Karen Crouch:  Ms. Crouch spoke regarding the City Charter 

  
5. Consent Agenda:   

a. October 26, 2023 meeting minutes 
b. Acceptance of October Expense & Payroll reports 
c. Monthly report from Library  

Motion:  Councilor Hurn moved and Councilor Wood second to approve the Consent Agenda.  
Discussion:  Councilor Miller inquired about the status of wastewater plant project.  Bethel advised the 
project is on time and slightly under budget.    
Motion passes 6-1 with Councilor Pointer voting no.   
 
6. Resolution 2023-10 Expenditure Appropriation Transfer Resolution: 
Bethel explained the resolution would allow funds to be transferred from the contingency line item in 
general fund to the election line item in general fund.  The transfer is necessary to provide for the 
special election and the possibility of an additional special election if needed.   
Motion:  Councilor Hurn moved and Councilor Wood second to approve Resolution 2023-10.   
Motion passes 7-0 unanimously. 

 
7. Resolution 2023-11 Delegation of Authority in the event of lack of quorum:   
Bethel explained the resolution was to keep the bills paid and city hall operational in the case the city 
must hold a special election and a quorum of council does not exist.     
Motion:  Councilor Hurn moved and Councilor Ritter second to approve Resolution 2023-11.    
Discussion:  Councilor Wood inquired if a resolution could be approved which would allow 3 councilors 
to be a quorum.  Bethel explained the City’s attorney and research into the case law suggest no.  The 
Mayor stated the League of Oregon Cities also suggested a quorum of council is needed to conduct 
business.  Councilor Miller inquired if the Council could table this Resolution until December.  Bethel 
stated yes as the present Council will still be in office until certified around December 20th if they do 
happen to be recalled.     
Councilor Hurn withdrew her motion.  
Motion:    Councilor Wood moved and Councilor Pointer second to table the resolution until the 
December 14th City Council meeting.  Motion passes 7-0 unanimously.   



City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       November 9, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 2 of 3 11/09/2023 
 

 
8. Lakeside Business Owners request for TLT funding for Million Lights of Lakeside event:   

Adam Hand, LBO president spoke regarding TLT tax dollars and what restrictions are on them.  He 
gave an overview of the event.  The LBO is requesting funding to pay for advertising, bathrooms and 
hand washing stations.   
Motion:   Councilor Wood moved and Councilor Ritter second to approve a grant of $1500.00 to 
LBO for the Million lights of Lakeside event.    
Discussion:  Councilor Wood stated she appreciates the continuation of the event. 
Motion passes 7-0 unanimously.   
 

9. Discussion regarding parking on Park Avenue:  Bethel explained the item was placed on the agenda 
based on a comment from a citizen at the last meeting.  The Council discussed the best way to 
discourage long term parking and agreed 90-minute parking signs would be placed along that 
portion of the Park Avenue.  The Council agreed 90 minutes would allow time for shopping and 
eating.  Councilor Miller stated he would work with the County Road and Bridge Director to get the 
signs.   

 
10. Lakeside District, Board and Committee Reports 

A. Airport:  Mayor/City Manager:  No meeting 
B. Watershed:   Councilor Miller: No meeting 
C. Water District:  Councilor Hurn:   No meeting. 
D. Tenmile Lake Association:  Councilor Ritter:   Did not attend due to health issues. Councilor Miller 

stated he attended and increasing membership was discussed. 
E. Fire District:  Councilor Pointer:  Councilor Pointer gave an overview of the calls for the month and 

the haunted house event.   
F. Lakeside Business Owners:  Councilor Smith; no meeting.   

 
11. City Manager Report:   
Bethel advised the Council another signer should be added for checks.  She suggested Councilor Pointer 
since he is the only one not up for reelection next year.   Bethel advised the CM position has been 
advertised and will close on November 20.  She advised in the interest of time; the Council might want to 
meet that evening to review applicants and decide who to interview.  Council agreed to meet at 5:15 Nov 
20.  She stated interview could take place on Nov 27th and the Council could possibly decide that night of 
who they would want to offer the position.  She advised the Holiday lights over 8th should be up around 
December 1.   
 
12. Mayor & Council Comments:   
Councilor Hurn:   Councilor Hurn thanked the public for attending and looking forward to the million 
lights of Lakeside Event.  Councilor Hurn thanked Ms. Mathews for the quilt raffle.     
Councilor Smith:  Agreed with Councilor Hurn.   
Councilor Wood:  Councilor Wood asked for an update regarding code enforcement. Bethel stated the 
attorney is doing some research behind the scenes.  She stated it would not be good for her to start 
discussions and then have another person come in and start over.   Councilor Wood thanked everyone 
for attending and excited about the event.     



City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       November 9, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 3 of 3 11/09/2023 
 

Councilor Ritter:  Councilor Ritter thanked the public for attending and the event.     
Councilor Miller:  Councilor Miller encouraged everyone to vote. 
Councilor Pointer:  Councilor Pointer echoed Councilor Miller.   
Mayor Kinsey:  Mayor Kinsey stated she will be presenting the fire department with a letter of 
commendation on Tuesday the 14th.  She also reminded the public of the town hall taking place on 
November 17 at 6:00 p.m.  She stated this year there will be a giving tree for seniors and children.          
 
Adjournment:  Next Regular City Council Meeting December 14, 2023:  6:00 p.m.   
 
The Above meeting was open to the public.  Lakeside is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity 
Employer and complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  All City Council Meetings are 
digitally recorded, available for viewing at City website: www.cityoflakeside.org.   
 
Signed/initialed __________    

http://www.cityoflakeside.org/


City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       November 21, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 1 of 1 11/21/2023 
 

The Lakeside City Council held a meeting at Lakeside City Hall, 915 North Lake Road, Oregon at 5:15 p.m. 
on Tuesday, November 21, 2023. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  5:15 p.m.  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT:  Mayor Sherry Kinsey, Councilors: Alan Pointer, Jaci Smith, Kim Ritter, Karen Hurn, Nikki 
Wood 
ABSENT:  Tom Miller 

STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Melissa Bethel 
 
4. Resolution 2023-12; A Resolution adopting hiring criteria and policies for the City 

Recorder/Manager position.  
Motion:  Councilor Wood moved and Councilor Ritter second to approve Resolution 2023-12. 
 Discussion: There was discussion regarding whether public comment was allowed and whether it was 
specifically called for on the agenda and in the meeting.   
Motion passes 4-2 with Councilors Wood and Pointer voting no. 

        
The Lakeside City Council met in executive session under the following to consider applications for employment 
for the City Recorder/Manager position: 

 
5. Executive Session: ORS 192.660 (2)(a):  To consider employment of a public officer, employee, staff member 

or individual agent.   
This executive session will be held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(a), which permits the council to meet in executive session to 
consider the employment of a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent. Representatives of the news media 
and designated staff will be permitted to attend the executive session. All other persons will not be permitted to attend the 
executive session. Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during 
the executive session, except to state the general subject of the session as announced. No decision will be made during the 
executive session. 

The Council came out of executive session at approx. 5:50 p.m.   
Motion:  
Councilor Hurn moved and Councilor Ritter second to have the City Manager set up interviews with the 
top two candidates.  Motion passes 5-0 with Councilor Pointer abstaining.    
 
Adjournment:  Next Regular City Council Meeting December 14, 2023:  6:00 p.m.   
 
The Above meeting was open to the public.  Lakeside is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity 
Employer and complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  All City Council Meetings are 
digitally recorded, available for viewing at City website: www.cityoflakeside.org.   
 
Signed/initialed __________    

http://www.cityoflakeside.org/


City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       November 27, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 1 of 2 11/27/2023 
 

The Lakeside City Council held a meeting at Lakeside City Hall, 915 North Lake Road, Oregon at 6:00 p.m. 
on Monday, November 27, 2023. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  6:00 p.m.  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT:  Mayor Sherry Kinsey, Councilors: Alan Pointer, Jaci Smith, Kim Ritter, Karen Hurn Tom 
Miller,  
ABSENT:  Nikki Wood  

STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Melissa Bethel 
 
4. Citizens Comments: 

Elaine Armstrong:  Ms. Armstrong discussed the duties for a City Recorder and Manager are 
different and the steps for hiring in executive session.   
Michael Armstrong:  Mr. Armstrong discussed potential ethics violations and threatened filing 
violations if the Council enters executive session.   
Karen Crouch:  Ms. Crouch stated the citizens should have been given an opportunity to decide if the 
city hires a recorder or manager. 
David Smith:  Mr. Smith discussed rules of conduct for Council and specifically the required behavior 
from the Council Rules and Procedures.   

 
5. Revocation of Resolution 2023-12; A Resolution adopting hiring criteria and policies for the City 

Recorder/Manager position.  
Motion:  Councilor Hurn moved and Councilor Smith second to revoke Resolution 2023-12. 
Motion passes 6-0 Unanimously.   
 

6. Resolution 2023-13; A Resolution adopting hiring criteria and policies for the City 
Recorder/Manager position.   
Motion:  Councilor Pointer moved and Councilor Ritter to adopt Resolution 2023-12. 
Discussion:  Councilor Miller confirmed the position was advertised as required. 
Motion passes 6-0 unanimously. 

        
The Lakeside City Council met in executive session under the following to consider applications for employment 
for the City Recorder/Manager position: 

 
7. Executive Session: ORS 192.660 (2)(a):  To consider employment of a public officer, employee, staff member 

or individual agent.   
This executive session will be held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(a), which permits the council to meet in executive session to 
consider the employment of a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent. Representatives of the news media 
and designated staff will be permitted to attend the executive session. All other persons will not be permitted to attend the 
executive session. Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during 
the executive session, except to state the general subject of the session as announced. No decision will be made during the 
executive session. 

The Council came out of executive session at approx. 6:40 p.m.   



City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       November 27, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 2 of 2 11/27/2023 
 

Motion:  
Councilor Hurn moved and Councilor Smith second to have the City Manager set up interviews with the 
top three candidates.  Motion passes 6-0.    
 
The Council discussed possible days and times for interviews to be held in executive session. 
The Council all expressed appreciation for the public attending and encouraged the public to vote.   
Bethel reminded everyone regarding the tree lighting on December 1st and gave an update regarding 
agenda items for the December 14 regular meeting. 
 
Adjournment:  Next Regular City Council Meeting December 14, 2023:  6:00 p.m.   
 
The Above meeting was open to the public.  Lakeside is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity 
Employer and complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  All City Council Meetings are 
digitally recorded, available for viewing at City website: www.cityoflakeside.org.   
 
Signed/initialed __________    

http://www.cityoflakeside.org/


City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       December 4, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 1 of 2 12/04/2023 
 

The Lakeside City Council held a special meeting at Lakeside City Hall, 915 North Lake Road, Oregon at 
4:45 p.m. on Monday, December 4, 2023. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  4:45 p.m.  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT:  Mayor Sherry Kinsey, Councilors: Alan Pointer, Jaci Smith, Kim Ritter, Karen Hurn Tom 
Miller, Nikki Wood 
ABSENT:  None 

STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Melissa Bethel 
        
The Lakeside City Council met in executive session under the following to interview applicants for the City 
Recorder/Manager position: 

 
4. Executive Session: ORS 192.660 (2)(a):  To consider employment of a public officer, employee, staff member 

or individual agent.   
This executive session will be held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(a), which permits the council to meet in executive session to 
consider the employment of a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent. Representatives of the news media 
and designated staff will be permitted to attend the executive session. All other persons will not be permitted to attend the 
executive session. Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during 
the executive session, except to state the general subject of the session as announced. No decision will be made during the 
executive session. 

The Council came out of executive session at approx.7:35 p.m.   
 
5. Decision to hire a City Manager/Recorder and have the City Attorney work on a contract for 

Council approval: 
Motion: Councilor Pointer moved and Councilor Smith second offer employment to Rick Hohnbaum 
with an initial offer of 70k year contingent upon a background check.   
Discussion:  Councilor Miller suggested the offer be extended at the 60k range to start negotiations.   
Amended Motion:  Councilor Pointer amended his motion to 60k a year with Councilor Smith second 
the amendment.   
Motion:  Procedurally the Council moved to formally add agenda item #5 to the agenda: 
Councilor Wood moved and Councilor Ritter second to formally add agenda item #5.  Motion passes 
unanimously.   
Vote on Amended Motion to have the City Attorney extend an offer of hire to Rick Hohnbaum with a 
starting negotiation of pay for 60k year/ with a contract to be forthcoming.  Motion passes 
unanimously.  
 
6. Discussion regarding quorum after certification of recall election – City Attorney: 

Gary Darnelle, City Attorney explained how the charter and Oregon case law specify the remaining 3 
councilors will constitute a lack of quorum and will require a special election to operate and do 
business.   

 



City of Lakeside   City Council Meeting Minutes       December 4, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 2 of 2 12/04/2023 
 

Adjournment:  Next Regular City Council Meeting December 14, 2023:  8:00 p.m.   
 
The Above meeting was open to the public.  Lakeside is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity 
Employer and complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  All City Council Meetings are 
digitally recorded, available for viewing at City website: www.cityoflakeside.org.   
 
Signed/initialed __________    

http://www.cityoflakeside.org/








































 

CITY OF LAKESIDE 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 
                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    December 14, 2023 
Ordinance ☐ Resolution ☐ Motion X Information  

Date Prepared:  May 4, 2023 Dept.:  City Manager’s Office 

SUBJECT:  Appointments to Planning Commission 
Contact Person for this Item:  Melissa Bethel,  
City Manager, manager@lakeside.org, (541) 759-
3007 

 
SUBJECT: Appointment to Planning Commission (two openings) 
  
BACKGROUND: The Lakeside Planning Commission has two vacancies starting in Jan. of 2024. City Code 
§30.03 (C) 6 sets out the requirements for appointment of Planning Commissioners.   
 
“By the second week of October, prior to the expiration of any Commissioner’s term of office, the City 
Recorder/Manager shall cause to have the opening for a Commissioner posted for two weeks.” 
The City Recorder/Manager posted the opening in City Hall, on the City Website, digital sign board and in the 
October Lakesidetonian in excess of two weeks and by the second week in October.    
 
“Applications shall be submitted to City Hall and forwarded to all Planning Commissioners and to City 
Councilors.  The Planning Commission evaluates the candidates and makes its recommendation and /or 
nomination to the City Council.” 
The Planning Commission met on November 2, 2023 to review applications and make recommendations to the 
Council. (see attached November 2, 2023 PC minutes).   
 
“The City Council shall consider all applicants and make appointments at the December meeting.” 
The city received two applications and both applicants were recommended for appointment by the Planning 
Commission. (See attached applications materials and minutes of Nov 2, 2023 PC meeting). 
 
Term of appointment: §30.03 (C)(3) states, “The term of office on the Commission shall be four years and no 
member shall serve for more than two consecutive full terms.  The term of office shall commence on January 1, 
and expire on December 31.”   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
§30.03 (C)(7) states, “Members shall serve without compensation other than reimbursement for duly 
authorized expenses”.   
 
Suggested Motion:  “I move the Lakeside City Council appoint (name appointees Council wishes to appoint) to 
the Planning Commission for a term of 4 years starting January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2027.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Application responses of David Smith and Rob Ward 
2. Planning Commission Minutes of 11-2-23 

mailto:manager@lakeside.org


City of Lakeside   Planning Commission Meeting Minutes    November 2, 2023 

CITY OF LAKESIDE Page 1 of 1 11/2/2023 
 

The Lakeside Planning Commission held a meeting at Lakeside City Hall, 915 North Lake Road, Oregon at 
6:00 p.m. on Thursday, November 2, 2023. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  6:00 p.m.  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT:  Chairman Mark Crouch; Commissioners Karl Granzow, Lanelle Comstock, and Randy 
Thomas 
ABSENT:  Mary Gray  

STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Melissa Bethel;  
 
4. Citizens Comments:    

None  
 
5. Approval of October 5, 2023 PC Minutes:  

It was pointed out that the agenda had the wrong date for the minutes, but the actual minutes 
reflected the correct date of the October 5, 2023 meeting.   
Motion:  Commissioner Comstock moved and Chairman Crouch second to approve the October 5, 
2023 minutes.  Motion passes 4-0 unanimously.    

 
6. Planning Commission recommendations to Council: 

Applicants Rob Ward and David Smith were interviewed.  Rob Ward was recommended 4-0 and 
David Smith was recommended 3-1 with Chairman Crouch voting no.  Recommended candidates will 
be on the December City Council agenda. 

 
Adjournment:  Next Scheduled Regular Planning Commission Meeting December 7, 2023:  6:00 p.m.  
 
The Above meeting was open to the public.  Lakeside is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity 
Employer and complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  All meetings are digitally 
recorded, available for viewing at City website: www.cityoflakeside.org.   
 
Signed/initialed __________    

http://www.cityoflakeside.org/


                       D. Smith Response



R. WARD RESPONSE



Employment Agreement   1 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
CITY RECORDER/MANAGER, CITY OF LAKESIDE 

 
BETWEEN: The City of Lakeside (City) 
AND: Rick Hohnbaum (Employee) 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. The Charter of the City of Lakeside provides that the Mayor may, with the consent of 
the City Council, appoint any city officers the City Council deems necessary. 

 
B. The City wishes to enter into an Employment Agreement with Employee as the City 

Recorder/Manager.   
 

AGREEMENT: 
 
SECTION 1. TERM 
 
The term of this Agreement shall be six months, beginning on December 15, 2023 and ending on 
June 15, 2024, unless terminated earlier pursuant to this Agreement. This Agreement, in its 
entirety, will be automatically extended an additional six–month periods unless the four 
members of the Council specifically take action to not renew this Agreement or negotiate a new 
agreement.   
 
SECTION 2.  DUTIES AND HOURS OF WORK 
 
A.  DUTIES 

 
The duties and responsibilities of Employee shall be in accordance with state law, all 
ordinances and resolutions of the City, and such policies as shall be adopted from time to 
time by the City Council.  The duties and responsibilities shall include, but are not 
necessarily limited to the following: 
 
1. Employer agrees to employ Rick Hohnbaum as City Recorder/Manager to perform 

the functions and duties specified in Sections 10 and 22 of the Lakeside Charter, et 
seq., and to perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions without 
interference. 

 
2. Employee is the chief administrative officer of the Employer and will faithfully 

perform the duties as prescribed in the Employer’s ordinances and as may be lawfully 
assigned by the Employer, and will comply with all lawful Employer directives, state 
and federal law, Employer policies, rules, and ordinances as they exist or may 
hereafter be amended. 

 
3. Employee or designee will attend, and will be permitted to attend, all meetings of the 

City Council, both public and closed, except for those closed meetings devoted to the 



Employment Agreement   2 

subject of this Agreement, or any amendment thereto, or the Employee’s evaluation 
or otherwise consistent with Oregon State law. 

 
4. Employee shall supervise and coordinate the City's administrative policies and 

procedures, including personnel policies and purchasing procedures. In addition, the 
Employee will provide information and advice to the Mayor, City Council, other 
public officials and the public regarding the City's operations. 

 
5. Employee shall act as the City's representative in such areas as labor relations, 

intergovernmental relations, conferences, conventions, and seminars related to public 
management. 

 
6. The Employee shall prepare and submit to the Mayor and Council such reports as 

may be required by that body, or as he may deem advisable to submit. In addition, the 
Employee shall recommend for adoption by the Council such measures as he may 
deem necessary or expedient. 

 
7. The Employee shall keep the Mayor and Council fully informed and advised of the 

financial conditions of the City and its future needs. He shall coordinate and supervise 
preparation of the preliminary budget for submission to the Mayor, and administer the 
budge after its adoption. 

 
8. The Employee shall perform other such duties as the Mayor and Council may 

determine by ordinance or resolution. 
 
9. The City Council, individually and collectively, will refer in a timely manner all 

substantive criticisms, complaints, and suggestions called to their attention to the 
Employee for study and/or appropriate action. 

 
10. The Employer, only upon Agreement with Employee, will fix any such other terms 

and conditions of employment, as it may determine from time to time, relating to the 
performance of the Employee, provided such terms and conditions are not 
inconsistent with or in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, the City of 
Lakeside charter, Lakeside Revised Municipal Code, or any other law. Employer 
shall provide Employee with seven (7) days’ written notice of additional terms and 
conditions of employment. 

 
B.   HOURS OF WORK 

 
Employee shall work 40 hours per week plus attending meetings required by the Mayor.   

 
SECTION 3.  COMPENSATION 

 
A. Employer agrees to pay Employee an annual base salary at the current annual rate of 

$70,000, payable in installments at the same time that the other employees of the Employer 
are paid. This Agreement will be automatically amended to reflect any salary adjustments 



Employment Agreement   3 

that are approved by Employer. Consideration will be given on an annual basis to an 
increase in compensation. Employee will receive all cost-of-living increases, if any, which 
Employer provides to its other employees, at the same time and in the same manner said 
increases are granted to those employees. Merit increases based on annual performance 
evaluations and salary reviews are exclusive of any general cost-of-living increases 
provided to other employees. 

 
B.   Upon each anniversary of employment, the City Council shall review Employee’s 

performance annually to determine annual salary increases.  Employee shall also receive 
any cost of living adjustments (COLA) received by the administrative management 
employees of the City during the period of this Agreement. 

 
C.  At any time during the term of the Agreement, Employer may, in its discretion, review and 

adjust the salary of the Employee, but in no event will the Employee be paid less than the 
salary set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement except by mutual written agreement between 
Employee and Employer. Such adjustments, if any, will be made pursuant to a lawful City 
Council action. In such event, Employer and Employee agree to provide their best efforts 
and reasonable cooperation to execute a new agreement incorporating the adjusted salary. 

 
SECTION 4.  HEALTH, DENTAL, VISION, AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 
 
In lieu of medical, dental, vision insurance benefits for Employee and family and life insurance 
with a benefit of $10,000 for Employee, the Employer agrees to compensate the Employee with 
cash in an equivalent amount to the cost of said benefits. (The equivalent amount is estimated to 
be around $800 per month.) 
 
SECTION 5. VACATION, SICK, AND HOLIDAY LEAVE 
 
Employee’s vacation accrual is 6.85 hours per pay period. After two years vacation hours 
increase progressively according to the employee handbook. Employee shall begin his 
employment with 40 hours accrued vacation time. 
 
Paid sick leave accrues at 8 hours per pay period. Employee is entitled to the same paid holiday 
benefit as other full-time employees of the Employer, as specified in the Employer’s personnel 
policy. The Employer currently provides 12 paid holidays to full-time employees. 
  
SECTION 6.  PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 
 
The City shall, to the extent it is financially viable, budget and pay expenses for Employee’s 
membership and participation in professional activities and conferences, including professional 
dues, the League of Oregon Cities, and any other membership fees and travel, which, in the 
judgment of the Mayor, are necessary and desirable for Employee’s continued participation, 
growth, and advancement as City Recorder/Manager. 
 
 
 



Employment Agreement   4 

SECTION 7.  RETIREMENT 
 
The Employee (Hohnbaum) has been in the past and is currently a participant of the PERS system 
and will maintain his participation following the rules and expectations from PERS including 
paying his contribution to PERS if required by PERS. 
 
SECTION 8.  PERFORMANCE REVIEWS 
 
A. Employer will annually review the performance of the Employee in May subject to a process, 

form, criteria, and format for the evaluation which will be mutually agreed upon by the 
Employer and Employee. 

 
B. The annual evaluation process, at a minimum, will include the opportunity for both Parties 

to: (1) conduct a review session where the governing body and the Employee meet first to 
discuss goals and objectives of both the past twelve (12) month performance period as well 
as the upcoming twelve (12) month performance period; (2) following that review session, 
prepare a written evaluation of goals and objectives for the past and upcoming year;(3) next 
meet and discuss the written evaluation of these goals and objectives; and (4) present a 
written summary of the evaluation results to the Employee. The final written evaluation 
should be completed and delivered to the Employee within 45 days of the initial review 
session. 

 
C. The evaluation of the Employee will always be conducted in open session of the governing 

body unless requested in writing by the Employee to be held in executive session. The 
evaluation process and evaluation results will be considered confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Nothing in this Agreement will prohibit the Employer or Employee from 
sharing the content of the Employee’s evaluation with their respective legal counsel. 

 
D. If the Employer decides to modify the evaluation instrument, format and/or procedure, and 

such modifications would require new or different performance expectations, then the 
Employee will be provided thirty (30) days to demonstrate such expected performance 
before being evaluated. 

 
SECTION 9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
Both parties acknowledge that in his capacity as City Recorder/Manager, Employee is subject to 
the ethics provisions of ORS Chapter 244 that apply to public officials. Further, both parties 
recognize the potential, no matter how small, that in his capacity as public official, Employee’s 
official actions may have a private pecuniary benefit or detriment to his, a relative, or business.  
 
In the event that Employee has a potential or actual conflict of interest, he shall abide by the 
provisions of ORS 244.120. In the event that Employee is determined to have an actual conflict 
of interest, those duties that constitute the conflict shall be assumed by the Mayor.  
is subject to the ethics provisions of ORS Chapter 244 that apply to public officials. Further, both 
parties recognize the potential, no matter how small, that in his capacity as public official, 



Employment Agreement   5 

Employee’s official actions may have a private pecuniary benefit or detriment to her, a relative, 
or business. 
 
Employee will always uphold the tenets of the ICMA Code of Ethics. Specifically, Employee 
will not support candidates for elected office, make financial contributions, sign or circulate 
petitions, or participate in fundraising activities for individuals seeking or holding office, nor 
seek or accept any personal enrichment or profit derived from confidential information or misuse 
of public time. Employer will support Employee in keeping these commitments by refraining 
from any order, direction, or request that would require Employee to violate the ICMA Code of 
Ethics. 
 
SECTION 10.  TERMINATION.   
 
For this Agreement, termination will occur when: 
 
A. Termination for Good Cause. A majority of the City Council votes to terminate the 

Employee for good cause at a properly posted and duly authorized public meeting, in 
accordance with ORS 192.610. "Good Cause" is defined as the following: 

 
1. Any willful, knowing, grossly negligent, or negligent breach, disregard or habitual 

neglect of any provision, duty or obligation of this Agreement, an ordinance of the 
City or the laws of the United States or the State of Oregon. 

 
2. Any misconduct involving an act of moral turpitude, criminal illegality (except minor 

traffic violations), or habitual violations of traffic laws, whether or not related to 
Employee’s official duties hereunder. 

 
3. Any willful, knowing, grossly negligent, or negligent misapplication or misuse, direct 

or indirect, by Employee of public or other funds or other property, real or personal, 
owned by or entrusted to the City, any agency or corporation thereof, or Employee in 
his official capacity.   

 
4. Employee is unable to perform his duties because of sickness, accident, injury, mental 

incapacity or health for a period of four successive weeks beyond any accrued sick 
leave, or for twenty working days over a thirty working–day period.   

 
B.   Termination Events. This Agreement shall terminate upon any of the following events: 

 
1.   Mutual written agreement of the Council and Employee’s, signed by both Employee 

and the designated representative of the City 
2.   Retirement or death of the Employee 
3.   Termination of employment for “good cause”   
4.   Unilateral severance agreed to by four members of the City Council 
5.   Resignation 
6.   Expiration of the term of this Agreement. 

  



Employment Agreement   6 

C.  Unilateral Severance 
 

In the event Employee is terminated by the City, the City will either (a) pay Employee a 
lump sum cash payment equal to three (3) months base salary, or (b) provide two (2) 
months advance written notice to Employee. However, if Employee is terminated “for 
cause”, then City shall have no obligation to pay the severance sum or give notice under 
this provision. 

 
The severance pay shall be paid only after the Employee executes a waiver and release 
agreement prepared by the City Attorney. 

 
SECTION 11.  RESIGNATION  
 
A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of 

Employee to resign at any time.  In the event Employee voluntarily resigns prior to the 
expiration of the term of this Agreement, Employee shall give City thirty (30) days’ written 
notice, unless otherwise agreed in writing.  In the event of voluntary resignation, no 
severance will be paid. 

 
B. Exception for Disability:  In the event Employee resigns or employment is severed due to 

disability of Employee, Employee shall be entitled to the severance pay set forth above and 
to be compensated for accrued, compensable leave and other accrued benefits. 

 
C. Mutual Non–Disparagement 
 
 In case of Employee’s termination or resignation under Sections 10 or 11, Employee and 

Employer’s elected officials each agree not to disparage or make negative comments about 
the other, either verbally or in writing, except where such comments are required by law. 

 
SECTION 12.  INDEMNIFICATION AND BONDING 

 
Consistent with the Oregon Tort Claims Act and the City's insurance coverage, the City shall 
defend and indemnify Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand, or other 
legal action arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee’s 
duties as City Recorder/Manager. Employee shall be covered under the City’s liability insurance 
policies for covered acts or omissions occurring in the performance of Employee’s duties as a 
city official at no expense to Employee.  City shall be responsible for the cost of defense, 
prosecution, judgment, or settlement of claims or suits, provided that the City reserves the right 
to choose or approve legal representation for Employee and will retain control over the defense 
of the claim, including the sole power to compromise and settle any claim or action and pay the 
amount of the settlement or judgment. 
 
The City shall bear the cost of any bond required of Employee by any law or 
ordinance. 
 
 



Employment Agreement   7 

SECTION 13.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A.   PERSONNEL MANUAL.  Except as otherwise specified in the Agreement, the terms and 
provisions of the City's Personnel Manual shall apply to the City Recorder/Manager. 

 
B.   REVIEW BY INDEPENDENT COUNSEL.  Employee acknowledges that the City has 

advised him to have this Agreement reviewed by an attorney of his choice. 
 
C.   EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective beginning December 15, 2023 and 

shall continue as provided in Section 1 of this Agreement. 
 
D.   NOTICES 
  

Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
personally served upon the other Party, or sent by US Postal Service, certified service 
postage prepaid and addressed to the appropriate Party as follows: 

 
 If to City:  Mayor Sherry Kinsey 
    City of Lakeside 
    PO Box L 915 
    North Lake Road 
    Lakeside, OR  97449 
 
 If to Employee: Mr. Rick Hohnbaum 
    2810 High Street SE 
    Salem, Oregon 97302 
 
Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of personal service or upon the date of deposit in the 
in the course of transmission in the US Postal Service.   
 
E.   VOLUNTARY AGREEMENT.  Employee acknowledges that he understands the terms of 

this Agreement and that she has entered into it voluntarily. 
 
F.   INTEGRATION. The terms of the agreement are set forth completely in this written 

document.  This Agreement supersedes all prior or contemporaneous oral and written 
agreements, understandings, and commitments.  Employee acknowledges that he has not 
relied on any other representation or promises by the City, its agents, employees or 
representatives, except those contained in this Agreement. 

 
G.   SEVERABILITY. Any provision, or portion of any provision, in this Agreement that is 

held unenforceable, void, or unconstitutional shall not affect the remainder of the terms of 
this Agreement or any portion thereof which shall be deemed severable and shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 
H.  MODIFICATION. This Agreement may not be modified in any respect, except by a 

written agreement executed by both parties. 



Employment Agreement   8 

 
I. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement will be governed by Oregon State law. 
 
J.  ARBITRATION. In the event either party undertakes any action to enforce or contest 

any matter arising out of or relating to this Agreement, that action will be brought in 
binding arbitration pursuant to ORS chapter 36.600, et seq., The Uniform Arbitration 
Act. The prevailing party in such action will be awarded such attorney fees and costs 
as the arbitrator will deem reasonable, considering the complexity, effort, and result 
against the prevailing party . 

 
IN WTINESS WHEREOF, the City of Lakeside has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by its Mayor, and Employee has signed and executed this Agreement. 
 

CITY OF LAKESIDE 

By: ________________________________  DATE: _______________________ 
Sherry Kinsey, Mayor City of Lakeside 

EMPLOYEE 

By: ________________________________  DATE: _______________________ 
Rick Hohnbaum, City Recorder/Manager 



 

 

RESOLUTION 2023-11 
 

A RESOLUTION TO DELEGATE AUTHORITY IN THE EVENT A LACK OF QUORUM 
EXISTS AND A SPECIAL ELECTION IS NECESSARY. 

WHEREAS, a recall election is to be held on November 28, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the potential exists for a quorum of Council to be recalled; and 

WHEREAS, if the recall is successful, a special election will need to be held to in order to obtain a 
quorum to conduct business; and   

WHEREAS, the City needs to continue to operate during the interim. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Lakeside City Council authorizes the City Manager, 
interim City Manager or other designee to conduct business not requiring legislative action that is in 
the best interest and on behalf of the City.  This Resolution only becomes effective if the afore 
mentioned lack of quorum exists.    

 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Lakeside City Council on this 14th day of December by a vote 
of _____________.  

 

APPROVED: 

 

_______________________________    

Sherry Kinsey, Mayor                       

 

Attest by: 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Bethel, City Recorder/Manager 


